
Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services

This agenda has been printed using 100% recycled paper

MEETING : HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
VENUE : COUNCIL CHAMBER, WALLFIELDS, HERTFORD
DATE : TUESDAY 15 NOVEMBER 2016
TIME : 7.00 PM

PLEASE NOTE TIME AND VENUE

MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE

Councillor A Alder (Chairman)
Councillors D Abbott, P Ballam, P Boylan, S Bull, S Cousins (Vice-
Chairman), J Jones, Mrs D Hollebon, S Stainsby and M Stevenson

Substitutes

(Note:  Substitution arrangements must be notified by the absent Member 
to Democratic Services 24 hours before the meeting)

CONTACT OFFICER: LORRAINE 
BLACKBURN

lorraine.blackburn@eastherts.gov.uk
01279 502172

Conservative Group: Councillors D Andrews, I Devonshire, 
R Henson, D Oldridge, R Standley and 
C Woodward

Public Document Pack

mailto:lorraine.blackburn@eastherts.gov.uk


DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS

1. A Member, present at a meeting of the Authority, or any committee, 
sub-committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of the 
Authority, with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) in any matter to 
be considered or being considered at a meeting:

 must not participate in any discussion of the matter at the 
meeting;

 must not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the 
meeting;

 must disclose the interest to the meeting, whether registered or 
not, subject to the provisions of section 32 of the Localism Act 
2011;

 if the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a 
pending notification, must notify the Monitoring Officer of the 
interest within 28 days;

 must leave the room while any discussion or voting takes place.

2. A DPI is an interest of a Member or their partner (which means 
spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they were 
civil partners) within the descriptions as defined in the Localism Act 
2011.

3. The Authority may grant a Member dispensation, but only in limited 
circumstances, to enable him/her to participate and vote on a matter 
in which they have a DPI.

4. It is a criminal offence to:

 fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest at a meeting if it 
is not on the register;

 fail to notify the Monitoring Officer, within 28 days, of a DPI that 
is not on the register that a Member disclosed to a meeting;

 participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in which a 
Member has a DPI;

 knowingly or recklessly provide information that is false or 
misleading in notifying the Monitoring Officer of a DPI or in 
disclosing such interest to a meeting.



(Note: The criminal penalties available to a court are to impose a 
fine not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale and 
disqualification from being a councillor for up to 5 years.) 

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings

Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its 
Committees using whatever, non-disruptive, methods you think are 
suitable, which may include social media of any kind, such as tweeting, 
blogging or Facebook.  However, oral reporting or commentary is 
prohibited.  If you have any questions about this please contact 
Democratic Services (members of the press should contact the Press 
Office).  Please note that the Chairman of the meeting has the discretion 
to halt any recording for a number of reasons, including disruption 
caused by the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.  
Anyone filming a meeting should focus only on those actively 
participating and be sensitive to the rights of minors, vulnerable adults 
and those members of the public who have not consented to being 
filmed.  

Public Attendance

East Herts Council welcomes public attendance at its meetings and will 
provide a reasonable number of agendas for viewing at the meeting.  
Please note that there is seating for 27 members of the public and space 
for a further 30 standing in the Council Chamber on a “first come first 
served” basis.  When the Council anticipates a large attendance, an 
additional 30 members of the public can be accommodated in Room 27 
(standing room only), again on a “first come, first served” basis, to view 
the meeting via webcast.  

If you think a meeting you plan to attend could be very busy, you can 
check if the extra space will be available by emailing 
committee.services@eastherts.gov.uk or calling the Council on 01279 
655261 and asking to speak to Democratic Services.  

mailto:committee.services@eastherts.gov.uk


AGENDA

1. Apologies 

2. Minutes (Pages 5 - 10)

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2016

3. Chairman's Announcements 

4. Declarations of Interest 

To receive any Member’s Declaration of Interest and Party Whip 
arrangements.

5. East Herts Strategic Partnership Board  - Approach to Protecting residents' 
health 

Presentation to Members.

6. East Herts Community Health and Wellbeing Fund - Evaluation Report 
(Pages 11 - 34)

7. HCC Health Scrutiny Committee 

Verbal update from the Chairman.

8. Health Scrutiny Work Programme 2016/17 (Pages 35 - 42)

9. Urgent Business 

To consider such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the 
meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration and is not likely to 
involve the disclosure of exempt information.



HWB HWB

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE HELD IN THE COUNCIL 
CHAMBER, WALLFIELDS, HERTFORD ON 
TUESDAY 20 SEPTEMBER 2016, AT 7.00 
PM

PRESENT: Councillor A Alder (Chairman)
Councillors P Ballam, S Bull, J Jones, 
D Oldridge, S Stainsby, R Standley and 
M Stevenson.

ALSO PRESENT:

Councillors E Buckmaster, L Haysey, T Page 
and S Rutland-Barsby.

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE:

Simon Barfoot - Environmental 
Health Promotion 
Officer

Jonathan Geall - Head of Housing 
and Health

Peter Mannings - Democratic 
Services Officer

Claire Pullen - Engagement and 
Partnerships Officer 
(Grants)

Kevin Steptoe - Head of Planning 
and Building 
Control Services

Paul Thomas-Jones - Environmental 
Health Manager – 
Commercial

303  APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors D 
Abbott, S Cousins and Mrs D Hollebon.  It was noted that 
Councillors D Oldridge and R Standley were substituting 
for Councillors S Cousins and Mrs D Hollebon 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



HWB HWB

respectively.

304  MINUTES – 14 JUNE 2016

RESOLVED – that the Minutes of the meeting held 
on 14 June 2016 be confirmed as a correct record 
and signed by the Chairman.

305  CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman summarised what was discussed at the last 
meeting of the Scrutiny Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen and 
highlighted the distinction between Members being given 
information and Members carrying out scrutiny.  The 
Chairman encouraged Committee Members to be proactive in 
scrutinising reports and getting involved.  She noted that any 
topics which were assessed to be ‘information seeking’ rather 
than scrutiny could then be put forward for either a future 
member briefing/training event or, if suitable, as a written 
reply/article in the Members Information Bulletin.  

Finally, she referred to the Panshanger Park Run plus a 
number of other projects that had been awarded a grant by 
the East Herts Health and Wellbeing Community Fund.

306  PLANNING AND HEALTH AND WELLBEING

The Scrutiny Officer and the Chairman submitted a report 
which gave Members the opportunity to gain evidence 
regarding planning and health and wellbeing at a strategic 
level and which assured that the wider public health 
agenda was being appropriately integrated prior to the 
adoption of the District Plan in 2017.

The Head of Planning and Building Control introduced the 
report and summarised the key issues in respect of the 
current position regarding planning and health and 
wellbeing.  He reminded Members that the Authority was 
undertaking the penultimate stages of the District Plan 
preparation process.

The Chairman of the Development Management 

Page 6



HWB HWB

Committee, Councillor T Page, referred to negotiations 
that occurred before applications reached the Committee.  
He commented on the Hertfordshire County Council 
(HCC) toolkit for Section 106 funding and referred to the 
importance of information regarding where this money 
should be spent in order to maximise community benefit.

Councillor P Ballam welcomed the comments that had 
been made and emphasised the importance of a more 
efficient system regarding Section 106 funding.  
Councillor T Page confirmed that Section 106 funding 
was being monitored closely by a Director.

Members raised a number of relevant issues and Officers 
and the Executive Member for Development Management 
and Council Support responded to queries and questions 
from the Committee.  Members received the report and 
endorsed the recommendations now detailed.

RESOLVED – that (A) Officers be requested to 
further explore the service’s contribution to the 
wider public health agenda; and

(B) Officers explore the feasibility of HCC public 
health being asked to comment on an interim basis 
on relevant planning applications at a useful point 
in the development management process prior to 
the adoption of the proposed District Plan.

307  OPPORTUNITIES TO SUPPORT INDEPENDENT LIVING 
ARISING FROM THE PROPOSED HOME IMPROVEMENT 
AGENCY

The Executive Member for Health and Wellbeing 
submitted a report updating Members on the ongoing 
project to develop a Hertfordshire Home Improvement 
Agency (HIA) to help elderly and vulnerable persons to 
remain living independently at home.

The Head of Housing and Health invited Members to 
support East Herts Council becoming a partner in the 
Hertfordshire HIA.  The Committee was also invited to 

Page 7



HWB HWB

propose innovative ideas to enhance service provision.  
Members were reminded of the background to the HIA 
and the work that had been completed to date.  The Head 
summarised a number of other relevant issues from the 
report and encouraged Members to email him with any 
ideas they had following the meeting

The Chairman commented on the time it could take for 
the completion of some home adaptations thus delaying 
discharge from hospital.  The Head of Service stated that 
the current process, including means testing for all works, 
however small, could lead to the whole process taking in 
excess of 6 months and a new system for low cost works 
without means testing could take just a few weeks.

Councillors J Jones and M Stevenson commented on the 
excellence of the changes referred to by the Head of 
Housing and Health.  The Head of Service advised that 
the Executive had confirmed East Herts Council’s 
commitment in a shared service with a view to this going 
live as part of the Hertfordshire HIA by September 2017.

The Head of Service confirmed to Councillor P Ballam 
that the proposals should ensure that the needs of 
Hertfordshire residents were not delayed.  He also 
responded to a query from Councillor D Oldridge by 
stating that all participating Hertfordshire Authorities 
would be working closely together to ensure residents got 
what they needed.  

Councillor M Stevenson noted that in the long term she 
would welcome the HIA looking at linking to a wider range 
of services including telecare.  The Head of Service noted 
this suggestion.

Members supported the recommendations now detailed.

RESOLVED – that (A) the proposal that East Herts 
Council becomes a partner in the Hertfordshire 
Home Improvement Agency (HIA) be supported; 

(B) the opportunities to enhance service provision 

Page 8



HWB HWB

by virtue of the HIA proposal and funding changes 
be supported; and

(C) a pilot adaptations service of non-means 
tested, fast-tracked, low cost works be evaluated 
with a view to whether these works could be 
completed in days rather than weeks.

308  UPDATE AND MINUTES FROM HERTFORDSHIRE 
COUNTY COUNCIL HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

The Chairman reported that she had attended the 
meetings of Hertfordshire County Council’s Health 
Scrutiny Committee and there was nothing specific to 
report back.  The Minutes of Hertfordshire County 
Council’s Health Scrutiny Committee meetings on 12 July 
2016 were submitted for information.  The Committee 
noted the Minutes.

RESOLVED – that the Minutes be noted.

309  SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME

The Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny 
Committee submitted a report reviewing the Committee’s 
work programme for 2016/17.  The Scrutiny Officer 
advised that the report on Air Quality Management areas 
would be submitted to the meeting on 14 March 2017 
instead of 15 November 2016.

The Scrutiny Officer advised that this would result in a 
number of substantial items for the March 2017 meeting.  
The Environmental Health Promotion Officer said his 
report on the East Herts Health and Wellbeing Funded 
projects could be moved to November 2016.  He asked 
the Committee if they still wished to receive this report in 
light of the change of status of the Committee from a 
Panel.  Members confirmed that they did and that they 
would be happy to receive the report in November 2016.  
It was noted that the Chairman and Scrutiny Officer would 
further review the agenda for the March 2017 meeting.

Page 9



HWB HWB

The Scrutiny Officer asked who would be invited to 
update on the Mental Health Day.   It was confirmed that 
the Council’s Member Champion on Mental Health, 
Councillor P Moore, would be invited to provide a report in 
March 2017.  The Chairman encouraged Members to 
attend East Herts Council’s Mental Health day on 9 
October 2016 at Hertford Theatre.  Members approved 
the work programme, as now amended.

RESOLVED – that the work programme, as now 
amended, be agreed.

The meeting closed at 8.45 pm

Chairman ............................................................

Date ............................................................

Page 10



EAST HERTS COUNCIL

HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 
15 NOVEMBER 2016                                                           

REPORT BY EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

EAST HERTS COMMUNITY HEALTH AND WELLBEING FUND PHASE 
ONE EVALUATION REPORT                                                                    

WARD(S) AFFECTED: ALL  

Purpose/Summary of Report

 To update the Committee on the progress and evaluation 
outcomes of the East Herts Community Health and Wellbeing Fund 
Phase One projects.

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE
That:

(A) The effectiveness of the projects be scrutinised and best 
practice shared.

1.0 Background 

1.1 In 2014, the Director of Public Health for Hertfordshire provided the 
District and Borough Councils in Hertfordshire with £2 million 
pounds to help address local health inequalities.  The money was 
released in two phases which equates to £100,000 for each phase 
for every District and Borough Council.  It was originally intended 
that the District Offer would span a two year delivery period. Due to 
the logistical planning aspects and the diversity of projects 
delivered this has now been extended to a four year period.   

1.2 East Herts Council has worked with Hertfordshire County Council’s 
(HCC) Public Health team throughout the project to develop, 
assess and deliver projects in East Herts. Part of the formal 
agreement between HCC Public Health and East Herts has 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



included a signed memorandum of understanding, regular progress 
meetings and quarterly reports presented to the Public Health 
Board.

2.0 Report

2.1 The Public Health Partnership Fund (formally the District Offer) is 
known within East Herts as the East Herts Community Health and 
Wellbeing Fund to enable easier promotion of the projects to East 
Herts residents.

2.2 The East Herts Health and Wellbeing Partnership Group along with 
suggestions made by Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 
(HWSC) and wider members, approached various organisations 
who were asked to submit ideas. The development  of  these ideas 
were further supported by the Environmental Health Promotion 
Officer.

 
2.3 The bids were assessed against the strategic vision and fund 

criteria, based upon the East Herts Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
priorities 2013-2018. This was completed by an assessment panel 
made up of the Executive Member for Health and Wellbeing and 
officer representation.

2.4 14 bids in total were assessed in January 2015, with nine being 
given the go ahead for support and a remaining five requiring 
further research and recommendations before a decision could be 
reached. The second round looking at the remaining five bids were 
made through email assessments following receipt of additional 
information.

2.5 Of the 14 supported bids, the various projects supported three 
themes: Lifestyle, Physical Activity and Healthy Living.

2.6 In order for organisations to receive the funding allocated to them a 
set of objective measures and outcomes were agreed upon. 
Delivery of these outcomes in a template report format were part of 
the funding agreement signed by all organisations receiving the 
awarded monies.

2.7 In addition to the reporting outcomes described in 2.6 above the 
HWSC Chairman also engaged members of the Committee in 
visiting a number of the projects to learn more about the benefits 
the clients received through taking part. The summary of these 
evaluation visits is contained in Essential Reference Paper B.

Page 12



2.8 The summary details of each project and their reported evaluation 
outcomes are also contained in Essential Reference Paper B.

2.9 HWSC Members are asked to scrutinise the reported evaluation 
measures and invited to ask questions about the projects from the 
information presented to them.

3.0      Report Summary

3.1 The funding from HCC has already led to a number of benefits to
  the residents of East Herts some of the key benefits which the
  Council has noted so far include :

  -   Partnership connections with supported organisations have
      been strengthened.
- A number of the projects have worked with organisations that 

have targeted vulnerable clients, demonstrating improvement 
in their health outcomes.

- The small grants programme has worked well delivering 10 
small projects improving mental health and physical activity 
outcomes for school communities and clients of smaller 
voluntary organisations.

- The success of the East Herts Community Health and 
Wellbeing Fund Phase One projects have been reported to 
HCC Public Health Board in June 2016 and also to HCC 
Health and Wellbeing Board in October 2016, with the aim of 
exploring the potential for wider rollout of successful projects 
and benefit from the shared learning with other Districts and 
Boroughs across Hertfordshire.

3.2 Implications/Consultations

3.3 Information on any corporate issues and consultation associated 
with this report can be found within Essential Reference Paper 
‘A’.

Background Papers

East Herts Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013-2018
http://ow.ly/lf3R305oYTd

Contact Member: Councillor Eric Buckmaster – Executive Member 
for Health and Wellbeing

Page 13

http://ow.ly/lf3R305oYTd


eric.buckmaster@eastherts.gov.uk

Contact Officer: Jonathan Geall  - Head of Housing and Health  
Contact Tel No: 01992 531594

jonathan.geall@eastherts.gov.uk

Report Author: Simon Barfoot – Environmental Health
Promotion Officer

simon.barfoot@eastherts.gov.uk

Page 14

mailto:eric.buckmaster@eastherts.gov.uk
mailto:jonathan.geall@eastherts.gov.uk
mailto:simon.barfoot@eastherts.gov.uk


ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘A’

IMPLICATIONS/CONSULTATIONS

Contribution to 
the Council’s 
Corporate 
Priorities/ 
Objectives:

Priority 1 - Improve the health and wellbeing of our 
communities
Residents living active and healthy lives
Support for our vulnerable families and individuals
Communities engaged in local issues

Priority 2 - Enhance the quality of people's lives 

Attractive places
Future development best meets the need of the district 
and its residents

Consultation: N/A
Legal: N/A
Financial: The East Herts Community Health and Wellbeing Fund 

2014 - 2018 means that the Council has £200, 000 over 
this period to deliver public health outcomes for East 
Herts residents working with local partners.

Human 
Resource:

N/A

Risk 
Management:

N/A

Health and 
wellbeing – 
issues and 
impacts:

Addressed in report

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘B’

East Herts Community Health and Wellbeing Fund Phase One Evaluation Table 2015/16

Project 
overview

Key outputs Outcomes and Evaluation Cost

1.Meet and 
Eat – eating 
healthily 
reducing social 
isolation and 
increasing 
social 
connections a) 
full course 
format; b) 
follow on 
course format 
and c) 10 
minutes to 
change your 
life

- a+b) To improve 
dietary intake - 
a+b) To improve 
the impact of 
social connections 
and wellbeing.
- c)To improve 
healthy lifestyle 
knowledge pre 

 Two a) full course formats were delivered at Calton Court and Bircherley 
Court.

 Three b) follow on course formats were delivered at Buntingford, Ferndale 
and Cornwall House supporting previously funded 7 week versions of the 
full course formats. 

 One course format c) 10 minutes to change your life was a pilot project, 
this did not go as well as expected but the concept and lessons learnt can 
be translated into other settings.

The following outcomes were collated during the Bircherley Court course as part 
of the Meet and Eat Nutritionist work with an MSc Public Health and Nutrition 
colleague at North Herts District Council who used the project as her main 
research study.
 

 Older people at the Bircherley Court project reported that they eat a 
healthier meal when they attend the Meet & Eat project.  This did not 
extend to their eating at home because the majority of residents lack the 
ability to cook substantially in their own homes due to poor health and/or 
physical impairment.  

 A significant majority of residents reported a substantial increase in the 
quantity of vegetables consumed on the day of Meet and Eat being 
delivered to them.  

£10,000

P
age 17



 There was no significant increase in overall life satisfaction for the 
Bircherley Court project.  However, crucially, residents reported a 
significant increase in life satisfaction on the day of the project and the 
majority of residents reported that the presence of a lunch club (or other 
social opportunity to eat together) on a more regular basis would result in 
an increase in life satisfaction

 The majority of residents also reported that a once a week intervention for 
seven weeks as insufficient to make a long term improvement in life 
satisfaction and requested interventions were sustained on a permanent 
basis.

2. East Herts 
Children’s 
Centres – 
supporting 
healthy eating 
and nutrition 
for early years

- To allow children 
to taste new foods 
safely and build 
their confidence in 
cooking.
- To increase 
parents cooking 
confidence, 
knowledge of 
nutrition and 
enjoyment of food 
for their children.

 Beane Valley Children's Centre staff developed a training package to train 
13 members of staff from other East Herts CCs to deliver Healthy Eating 
courses to parents and children in July and August, and also offered other 
centres in Hertfordshire who paid a training fee.

 Overall in East Herts, 13 staff have been trained, 9 courses have been run, 
81 parents and 81 children have taken part.

 The courses have all been well received and the feedback from both 
parents and children have been very positive. Each parent completed a 
questionnaire at the beginning and end of the course. They were asked to 
score their knowledge and behaviour from 1 poor, to 5 excellent.

Please see results in pictoral form below:

£10,000

P
age 18



P
age 19



 

P
age 20



3.Forever 
Active East 
Herts (CSAF) 
–increasing 
physical 
activity levels 
for 50+ age 
group 

- To increase 
number sedentary 
people aged 50 to 
75 who participate 
at least once a 
week in sports and 
physical activity. 
- To increase 
participant 
confidence, reduce 
barriers and 
promote increase 
in trained volunteer 
coaches. 

 Forever Active East Herts was launched in November 2015 with a Come 
and Try event at Wodson Park in Ware. The event attracted approximately 
200 individuals, an excellent start to the project.

 As the project is a concept that has been developed in partnership to 
obtain external funding from Sport England it has been quite different from 
supporting a pre-existing organisation. As a result there have been a 
number of administration and project management steps required. This has 
involved setting up the project to run efficiently, safely and sustainably, as 
well as identifying community delivery partners who are interested in 
hosting sports and physical activity classes. 

 There has been good progress in the last year and Sport England is 
satisfied with the figures submitted in July 2016.

 A total of 648 individuals attended at least 1 class with a target of 854 by 
end of December 2016.

 4,105 overall attendances have occurred with a target of 8,656 by the end 
of December 2016.   

 Up until now, the project has worked with 20 community partners (including 
churches, sports clubs, and village halls) with more expressing interest 
each week.  

 Two Come and Try free taster events have been delivered with Buntingford 
attracting 59 individuals and Ware around 150 individuals.

 It is recognised that it is challenging to reach sedentary individuals rather 
than those that are already active. The project coordinator and East Herts 
Council communications team have been working together on a targeted 
marketing campaign using behavioural change theory.    

£10,000

4. Small 
grants 
allocation 
promoting 
mental health 
or physical 
activity for 

- 10 Awards given 
including school 
sensory garden, 
physical activity 
trail, fishing 
project, youth café 
volunteering etc. 

Evaluation Feedback 1 - DanceBase Ware
 A project that enables disabled people in the community to explore dance 

theatre in a fully accessible, supportive environment. 
 Participants build up many practical life skills such as time-keeping, health 

and fitness awareness, how to interact more socially and anger / behaviour 
management 

£15,000

P
age 21



local 
organisations 
(£1500 per 
award)

To deliver 
minimum six week 
intervention, noting 
number of 
participants and 
sustainability. To 
deliver mental 
health or physical 
activity outcomes 
and promote three 
of Five Ways to 
Wellbeing 
outcomes.

 In addition, the grant enabled disabled trainees to help run and support 
DanceBase Ware and add value to the existing programme of dance 
activities

Evaluation Feedback 2 - Pinewood Playground equipment for nurture 
classes.

 The equipment is fitted next to 3 nurture classes.  Small groups of students 
access the play area for planned movement breaks, which can help 
manage behaviour.  The area is used both for structured play and free 
play. The equipment allows the adolescents to release energy and get 
physical sensory feedback in different forms; run, balance, wobble, 
bounce, balance, push and pull, as well as visual and audio feedback. 

 This is important to SEN adolescents as expressing themselves and 
displaying their emotions are more difficult, and their feelings can develop 
into anger, aggression and possibly violence.  Regular movement breaks 
addresses their physical and mental requests minimising or eliminating 
problematic scenarios in the classroom.

Evaluation Feedback 3 - Thirst Youth Café Volunteering
 In our initial application we said that we would facilitate young people 

volunteering in the café and give them one to one mentoring alongside 
their volunteering. We expected that this would help the young volunteers 
develop self-esteem as they learnt new skills and learn to engage with 
other young people in a safe environment where they had time to process 
their experiences with a mentor.  

 Our initial plan was to mentor each young person just 6 weeks; however 
the root of these problems was more complex than first thought. In order to 
make the most impact in their lives as possible the original batch of young 
people who volunteered with us were mentored throughout the year, in line 
with other mentoring programmes which work on a yearly basis.

5. Hertford 
Cycling Hub – 
increasing 
female cycling 

- Outcomes 
around pre-post 
physical activity 
increase, number 

 This project has involved British Cycling Breeze Co-ordinators, Local 
Cycling Business input and a number of contributions from Leisure and 
Planning colleagues as well as project co-ordination by East Herts Health 
and Wellbeing. 

£5,000. 

P
age 22



uptake and 
supporting 
families, bike 
repair and 
training linking 
with Breeze 
Co-ordinators 
and local 
businesses

of families and 
children 
participating. The 
final project 
submission will be 
presented for 
internal approval 
by end of June 
2016. 

 As the project is a concept that has been developed from first principles 
and quite different from supporting a pre-existing organisation there are a 
number of steps and project management steps involved, as well as 
locating a building for the hub to be located in.

 There has been good progress in the last year and the original intention 
was to launch the Hertford Cycling Hub in October 2016. It is recognised 
there are still a number of governance and administrative steps to 
implement and also on reflection a launch during the spring months of 
March 2017 would be more beneficial to the sustained growth and raising 
awareness of the project to the community.

   
6. East Herts 
Dementia 
Homes 
Project – 
adjusting the 
home 
environment 
through 
adaptation to 
promote 
increased 
health and 
wellbeing and 
independent 
living

- To improve the 
health and 
wellbeing of 
individuals with 
dementia and their 
families through 
adapted home 
measures.
- To demonstrate 
the potential cost 
savings for these 
secondary 
prevention 
adaptations 

Statistics:
 Number of clients who had assessments 70
 Clients who have benefited from the project (thorough advice, liaison with 

partner services but not assessed)-76
 Client actions for year 1 – 145
 Number of physical adaptations 82
 Large scale Trusted Trader adaptations through the project - 6
 Joint working opportunities – 93

 Researched, created and trialled a working Audit for a Dementia Friendly 
Home.

- Utilised a number of leading research resources to create and adapt an 
audit that created an ideal Dementia friendly home. Reviewed throughout 
the year to best suit the client’s needs.

 Created referral network through links with local Alzheimer’s society, Early 
Memory Diagnosis and Support Services (EMDASS), Hertfordshire 
Independent Living Services and East Herts Council. Through this we:

- Identified and supported those diagnosed with Dementia, just starting their 
journey or who already had been living with Dementia.

- Reviewed ideas from each of the supported services so we could advocate 

£29,000

P
age 23



and provide better support for our clients. 
- Extended knowledge to provide a niche service that complimented the 

other services in the district and that did not overlap.
- Visited Dementia cafes to engage with Dementia clients to adapt the 

service for their needs. 
 To evaluate the project we utilised the Warwick and Edinburgh Mental 

Well-Being Scale (WEMWBS) which measures the mental well-being of the 
person living with Dementia and the Carer.

- This validated survey gave us measurable outcomes based on client’s 
wellbeing.

- We coupled this with a qualitative survey for the clients which gave us 
more detailed feedback on the benefits of the adaptations and the overall 
project.

 We built up a toolkit of items that were funded to enable each client to 
benefit from these items free of charge to fully support them. 

- These items included a clock, whiteboard, signs and stronger light bulbs 
each of which supported the Dementia Friendly Homes audit. Each of 
these items were chosen specifically for the positive effects they could 
bring to the home and the person living with Dementia and were relatively 
low cost.

 We are actively involved in the Ageing well group for East Herts to continue 
joint working between services and tailoring new services to best support 
people living with Dementia. 

 We gave many presentations on Dementia friendly environments, including 
one at  Braughing Parish council for 50 people to broaden the outreach of 
the project to more rural areas.

7. Green 
Aiders East 
Herts – 
garden 
clearance with 
physical 

- 25 Garden visits 
completed – see 
featured project 
Highlight on next 
page for full 
outcome data.

 25 garden visits delivered.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
 34,380 calories were expended by the team of 68 volunteers over 72.5 

hours for the 25 garden visits, which is an average of 505 calories 
expended per person. A finger pulse monitor to assess pulse (work 
intensity) was also used on some garden days but these results were 
difficult to record and estimate.

£10,000

P
age 24



activity and 
wellbeing 
benefits for 
homeowners 
and volunteers

 This was given verbally to the residents, advising on tasks that needed to 
be prioritised or how something could be done more easily, this advice was 
further backed up with a booklet created by Charity 'Thrive' on Helping 
older people with gardening. 

 Volunteers carrying out the gardening tasks were encouraged to talk about 
themselves, connecting with one another and the resident when possible. 
To be active in Garden tasks, to take notice in any interesting plants or 
insects/birds and learn new information about them. 

 From the 14 out of 25 residents that responded to the survey, 10 (71%) 
either ‘Agreed’ or ‘Strongly Agreed’ that they felt more motivated in 
general. Five residents (36%) said they felt their physical health had 
improved and nine (64%) saw improvements in their mental wellbeing. 
Finally, six (43%) said the visit increased their ability or desire to take 
exercise. In addition, 11 of the residents (79%) Agreed or strongly agreed 
that the Green Aiders visit reduced their risk of having a fall

8. Herts Mind 
Network - 
Exercise to 
Wellbeing – 
range of 
physical 
activity classes 
to support 
positive mental 
health 
recovery.

- To run two 
Nordic, Dance and 
Relaxation low 
impact exercise 
groups of six week 
duration each to 
improve physical 
activity among the 
key target 
audience.
- To assist with 
staff training and 
volunteer buddying 
to support delivery 
of above courses.

 4 x 6 week Nordic Walking courses.  The two courses run in Bishop’s 
Stortford were during the day and the 2 courses run in Ware were both in 
the evening due to client interest and availability.  Nordic walking enhances 
the wellbeing benefits of normal walking, by using lightweight poles which 
increase the use of the upper body and also supports and propels the 
walker in their stride.  So despite using more muscles and calories, the 
walking seems easier! Client’s felt this was a very sociable way of 
exercising as they could chat as they walked.

 2 x 4 week Exercise to Dance courses one in Ware and one in Bishop’s 
Stortford.  These were run by a dance psychotherapist, off site at the 
Rhodes Centre, so they had a bigger space.  Dance is a great way to have 
fun and keep fit, it can promote a sense of wellbeing and help raise low 
mood.  The criteria for this course was for older people.  Those who didn’t 
feel able to do the dance class attended Yoga instead.

 4 x 6 week Relaxation courses across Ware and Bishop’s Stortford.  
Clients learnt to develop their own relaxation skills and techniques to help 
them manage stress, anxiety and various other areas. The criteria for this 

£8,000

P
age 25



particular group was for working adults, so all courses took place in the 
evening at our wellbeing centres.

 We provided 1-1 buddy support via our Peer Mentors for clients to access 
sports centres, groups and clubs depending on their level of wellbeing and 
fitness and what they felt able to achieve at that time. 
 

Our evaluation and measuring tools for the pilot project included: 
 Physical Activity Readiness questionnaire (PARQ) to measure their 

physical activity level and general health.  This would tell us if the course 
was unsuitable for a particular client and also if any adjustments/further 
support was required.

 Participant Progression and Achievement Record
 Wellbeing Evaluation forms

9. Future 
Living 
Hertford 
(FLH) -  
psychological 
and psycho 
educational 
therapy for 
those 
recovering 
from lifestyle 
addictions

- For full details 
see featured 
project Highlight 
on next page for 
full outcome data.

 Case Study Outputs & Outcomes:
Female attendee, date started: 21.08.15
Presenting Problem: Alcohol Addiction; Groups Attended: 1. Main 
Addictions Group – feelings meetings and workshops, 2. Monica Group, 3. 
Individual Counselling - stopped after a period of non-attendance.

This client has been involved in addiction recovery for a long time and has 
had input from a number of services over the years.
Starting Point

 The client reported that prior to joining FLH that life was not good. She 
complained of problems with friends and family and of falling into the trap 
of consistent people pleasing. In her words she felt that she was ‘always 
being taken advantage of’. She explained that coming to FLH has ‘been 
the making of me’ with her developing into a different person and 
addressing the challenges in her life differently.
Issues Faced  

 ‘People pleasing’ led to engagement in some activities offered at FLH more 

£10,000

P
age 26



through a sense of obligation rather than a true desire; now though she 
talked of actively setting boundaries both at FLH and in her home life. 
Progress Made

 The client reported that she felt herself to have made huge strides in her 
recovery. Examples of this discussed included volunteering in the Café 
with the preparation of food and cooking, something which she talked of 
with real pleasure and a sense of achievement. She also explained that 
she is cooking more at home and really enjoying it. She reported more 
commitment to attending the group therapy programme on a regular basis.
Client comments

 ‘I’ve learnt that I can stand back and that I can walk away from arguments’, 
‘I know now what works for me’. She also talked of developing the ability to 
recognise and identify her emotions and to be able to evaluate where they 
were coming from. 

10. Active 
East Herts – 
Moving Mums 
Project - 
increasing 
women’s 
participation in 
Sport and 
physical 
activity in East 
Herts

- To increase the 
number of 
participants, 
frequency and 
number of x 30 
minute physical 
activity sessions 
by women aged 
18+. 
- To support 
participants to 
complete coaching 
qualifications and 
volunteers who 
join local sports 
clubs.

 Overall 17 Moving Mums groups were set up at 17 local primary schools or 
children centres in the East Herts district. There have been 228 
participants taking part in the sessions across the different schools. Moving 
Mums provided physical activity at a convenient time and place for mums. 
The school gate activity has proved very popular with mums as it’s a great 
time and location for them to get active. 

 We have trained up 25 mums who all now hold a National Governing Body 
Accredited Qualification. Qualifying mums at the school hasn't just meant 
they carry on the sessions at their school, it has seen them become the 
instructors on other programmes too. 

 Many of these mums are still delivering sessions at their local schools as 
these groups have continued after the funded period which is fantastic 
news. Enabling mums to gain increased confidence as it wouldn't have 
occurred to them to become a fully qualified instructor prior to the project.

 A celebration event for the mums who took place where 14 Moving Mums 
teams were funded to take part in the Relay Run in Hertford. 56 mums all 
signed up to take part in a 4k run which was a huge achievement for most 

£5,000

P
age 27



mums as they had never ran before. A special marquee helped the 
celebrations for the Moving Mums which they all loved and felt part of a 
huge community. 

 There has been an impact on the Mum’s families as well as the mums 
themselves. Many mums said that because they have regained their 
confidence and self-esteem they can enjoy more time outside, being active 
with their family. The celebration event saw mums and their children being 
active together

11. 
Hertfordshire 
Park App - 
which can be 
used as an 
interactive 
map for the 
parks and 
open spaces in 
Hertfordshire

- To promote 
increased physical 
activity and leisure 
use of 
Hertfordshire 
parks. Hertsmere 
Borough Council is 
leading on this with 
support from other 
Herts 
Districts/Boroughs.

 This is a combined Hertfordshire District and Borough project which is 
being led by colleagues at Hertsmere Borough Council. There has been 
significant progress in recent months with a company securing the tender 
to design and implement the Park App. 

 Design samples have been presented and currently there is a survey being 
completed to develop the content database. All the Local Authorities have 
submitted data about the parks and open spaces they wish to feature. 

 As an overall project it has received £50, 000 from HCC Public Health and 
an additional £45, 000 joint contributions from the 9 supporting Districts 
and Boroughs. Further progress will be reported back to the HWSC at 
subsequent meetings.

£5,000

12. 
Panshanger 
Park Run – 
increasing 
physical 
activity of 
Hertford 
residents and 
capturing 
survey data on 
total 
participants

- To evaluate age, 
number, activity 
levels, distance 
run, participant 
location.
- To use online 
survey developed 
with Herts County 
Council Public 
Health to collect 
user health data.

 The Panshanger Park Run project received support from East Herts 
Council as part of an agreement working alongside HCC Public Health 
data intelligence team to collect data or Park run participants. This data 
collection and analysis would lead to a published research report which 
would seek to inform and enable learning around the physical activity and 
wellbeing benefits benefitting park run participants and their families. There 
was a particular interest about engaging those who were more inactive or 
did not usually have the opportunity to so readily take part in organised 
activities.

 The analysis is currently underway and results are expected soon.

£4,500

P
age 28



13. LSx Air 
Quality 
Leventhorpe 
School Yr. 8 
Project – 
enabling 
simpler rollout 
and revised 
toolkit for 
teachers and 
students 

- To work with 
student groups to 
raise awareness of 
air quality and 
promote increased 
use of sustainable 
transport. 
- To observe 
student 
presentations on 
air quality and for 
LSx to revise 
original toolkit for 
wider school 
usage.

Following the success of Cleaner Air 4 Secondary Schools (CA4SS) pilot in 
Richard Hale School, and the Cleaner Air 4 Secondary Schools Toolkit, this 
project sought to bring Cleaner Air 4 Schools to a Year 8 Science Class at 
Leventhorpe School, Sawbridgeworth. 

 29 Year 8 Science Class Students engaged with project activities including 
citizen science and campaigns development 

 Six student groups measured Nitrogen Dioxide using (NO2) Diffusion 
Tubes over a two-week exposure period 

 Student groups developed campaigns seeking to engage parents, 
teachers, peers and local primary schools around air quality issues. This 
included the creation of visual media by students including animations and 
posters 

 Redevelopment of the Cleaner Air 4 Secondary Schools Toolkit with 
‘teacher-friendly’ resources, content and activities.
 

Travel behaviour achievements:
 The number of students wishing to travel to school by walking or cycling 

increased by 5%. 
 The number of students wishing to travel to school by car decreased by 

22%. 
 Prior to the project, 67% (17) of students claimed to know how their actions 

affected pollution, compared to 92% (24) afterwards. 
 Prior to the project, 41% (12) of students claimed to be aware of the 

actions they can take to reduce their exposure to air pollution, compared to 
85% (22) afterwards. 

 Prior to the project, 66% (19) of students claimed to be concerned about 
the health impact of air pollution, compared to 81% (21) afterwards.

Project Delivery Achievements: 
 Created video story board titled #DrawMyJourney chronicling one boy’s 

journey where he discovers the impact of Air Pollution and his campaign 
for cleaner air. 

£3,000

P
age 29



 Short vlog showing students placing diffusion tubes near Leventhorpe 
School. 

 Rehearsed presentation to class and later shown to year 8 peers during 
assembly 

 Identified strategies to reduce air pollution by directing campaign towards 
council, such as replacing a roundabout which shows high levels of 
Nitrogen Dioxide with trees. 

 Created informative display about Air Quality issues in classroom 
14. East Herts 
YMCA - 
Healthy 
eating course 
skills for 18-
25 young 
people

- To record food 
choices made by 
residents aged 18-
25 and assess 
improvements in 
healthier eating.
To assess 
participant 
motivation, 
enjoyment, interest 
in cooking and its 
impact on personal 
health and 
wellbeing. 

Knowledge Acquisition - Understanding of food assisting health and well-being 
 All of our residents understand that what you eat affects your health and 

well-being and have an appreciation for eating healthy foods. “[If] I don’t 
eat healthy,” one resident wrote, “I feel it in my fitness.” Another said, “If 
you eat sugary/fatty foods, you can end up with Type 2 Diabetes.

Behavioural Changes - Increase in time allocated by residents to prepare food
 While we had hoped the cooking course would inspire residents to allocate 

more time to preparing food, we found this was not the case, with 67% 
stating that they did not spend more time cooking. Some residents stated 
that they “never have time to” cook. Providing a structured place and time, 
with ingredients supplied free of charge, may have allowed more flexibility 
to cook without impacting too greatly on their schedule or finances.

Increased interest in cooking
 Despite the above, 100% of the residents who attended the course 

reported being more interested in cooking afterwards. This implies that 
there are perhaps other barriers to cooking than knowledge and interest.

Selection of healthy foods being eaten - less reliance on takeaway / ready meals
 Those who attended the cooking course also reported eating more portions 

of fruits and vegetables per day and slightly less reliance on takeaway or 
other prepared foods. The majority of the residents said they often cook 
healthy foods for themselves, which shows that they have put their 
knowledge of how food assists health into practice.

£3,000

P
age 30



Involvement and Community Spirit
Residents gaining enough confidence to take an active role in the class

 When the project first began, the residents were unwilling and reluctant to 
be involved – at all. Many of the sessions found the teacher cooking by 
herself, and the residents only arrived once the food was ready to eat. 
During this time, the teacher was able to chat with them and start building a 
relationship with them.

 The next set of sessions saw one or two residents begin to venture in and 
participate a little in the actual cooking. A new worker also helped with 
Resident engagement with worker drawing further interest to the class.

 By the end of the second set of sessions, the Lounge was often very busy 
during the course with residents socialising, playing pool, and participating 
in the course. A handful of residents were particularly interested in the 
cooking and actively participated in that aspect every single session from 
start to finish, even suggesting meals they would like to learn to cook and 
sourcing cheap and healthful ingredients.

 Not only did the residents gain enough confidence to take an active role in 
the cooking class, being in the Lounge together socially once a week 
sparked in them a desire for more. This inspired the creation of a weekly 
“Art Club” that the residents also attended, the re-convening of the pool 
team, and more cooking-related activities. “It brought residents together,” 
was one comment we received regarding the cooking course.

P
age 31



Totals: Phase One and Two (projects not listed here as will be reviewed in December 
2017) Expenditure to date:

£190, 000

Spend against Members matched funding (derived from New Homes Bonus) to 
balance income and expenditure:

£20, 000

Overall remaining balance for both funds: £190, 000

P
age 32



Visits to East Herts Community Health and Wellbeing Fund projects by members of the Health and 
Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee.

In order to add to the formally received evaluation members were encouraged to visit the projects in pairs.

The previous Chairman of the HWSC led on this and a meeting was arranged in September 2015 to plan the visits. The current 
Chairman of the HWSC has continued with scheduling of the remaining visits. The following objectives were arrived at:

 To ensure that the public health monies allocated to East Herts Council from Herts County Council Public Health were spent 
in a right and proper way.  

 To include a light touch assessment of projects looking at how the projects were performing and exploring the sustainability 
of the projects in the future.

Project Number and Title: Feedback from HWSC members
3. Forever Active East Herts Two Councillors from the Committee visited Grange Paddocks 

one morning to witness the Learn to Swim session for the over 
50s. Six residents attended for the half hour session.  The 
Councillors joined with the Group for refreshments afterwards 
and learnt that all the attendees seemed to have benefitted from 
the first session and were looking forward to the next one.  A 
successful session and very worthwhile doing.  Another visit by 
the one of the Councillors in the paired team was planned to see 
a similar session at Hartham.

8. Herts Mind Network – Exercise to Wellbeing Feedback from the two Councillors who visited Herts Mind 
Network (HMN) was as follows. It was a very gratifying 
experience.  HMN were obviously doing a useful job filling in a 
gap in caring for residents and were making good progress in 
organising the walks. At this initial stage it was noted HMN were 

P
age 33



experiencing some difficulty in having people referred to them 
and it was apparent that all contact avenues should be 
considered.

A discussion between Councillors and HMN took place on how 
the referral process may be helped and it was suggested more 
direct contact with the GP surgeries through scheduled visits 
and links with wider health groups could be beneficial.

A variety of other projects listed above were visited by combined 
teams of Councillors on the Scrutiny Committee.

The overall feedback was that the Councillors enjoyed the 
experience of visiting the projects, learned a lot about the 
organisation and clients and were pleased to see the health and 
wellbeing benefits that the East Herts Community and Wellbeing 
Fund had enabled.

P
age 34



EAST HERTS COUNCIL

HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 15 NOVEMBER 
2016                                                                                                           

REPORT BY CHAIRMAN OF HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE                                                                                           

HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME                                                                            

WARD(S) AFFECTED: none 

Purpose/Summary of Report

 To review and determine Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny (HWS) 
committee’s future work programme.

RECOMMENDATION FOR DECISION:
That:
(A) the work programme detailed in this report be agreed

1.0 Background 

1.1 Items previously required, identified or suggested for the HWS 
work programme are set out in Essential Reference Paper ‘B’.  

1.2 To support members in their reading of health and wellbeing 
related reports and in discussions with speakers from partner 
agencies the attached Essential Reference Paper ‘C’ offers a 
quick checklist to the abbreviations and acronyms in common use.   
Updates and corrections made since the previous version of this 
publication are shown in italics.

2.0 Report

2.1 The draft agenda for 2016/17 meetings is shown in Essential 
Reference Paper ‘B’.  The timing of some items may have to 
change depending on availability of speakers and essential data.

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



2.2 Members are asked whether there are any additional topics they 
wish to suggest for consideration.   Members are advised that they 
can scrutinise local health issues but not ones that affect the 
county as a whole.  Members are also referred to the Committees 
Work Programme 16/17 link shown here Committees Work 
Programme 16/17

2.3 Members are also asked whether they wish to extend an invitation 
to one or more Executive members to attend a particular meeting 
or for a specific agenda item.  Note that the Executive Member for 
Health and Wellbeing has agreed to attend the meeting in March 
2017.

2.4 Members are asked whether there is any training relevant to 
scrutiny or to the function/remit of HWS as a committee which they 
would like arranged.  This could be done as a separate session 
open to all scrutiny members or as an item on a future HWS 
agenda (as appropriate).

3.0 Implications/Consultations

3.1 Information on any corporate issues and consultation associated 
with this report can be found within Essential Reference Paper 
‘A’.  

Background Papers
None

Contact Member: Cllr Angela Alder – Chairman Health and Wellbeing 
Scrutiny Committee  angela.alder@eastherts.gov.uk

Contact Officer: Kevin Williams - Interim Head of Democratic and 
Legal Support Services  Extn 1514 
kevin.williams@eastherts.gov.uk

 
Report Author: Claire Pullen – Scrutiny Officer, Extn 1459

claire.pullen@eastherts.gov.uk 

Page 36

http://democracy.eastherts.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=158&RD=0
http://democracy.eastherts.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=158&RD=0
http://democracy.eastherts.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=158&RD=0
mailto:angela.alder@eastherts.gov.uk
mailto:kevin.williams@eastherts.gov.uk
mailto:claire.pullen@eastherts.gov.uk


ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘A’

IMPLICATIONS/CONSULTATIONS

Contribution to 
the Council’s 
Corporate 
Priorities/ 
Objectives 

2016/17 
wording

Priority 1 – Improve the health and wellbeing of our 
communities 

Priority 2 – Enhance the quality of people’s lives 

Priority 3 – Enable a flourishing local economy

Effective use of the scrutiny process contributes to the 
Council’s ability to meet one or more of its corporate 
objectives.

Consultation: Potential topics for scrutiny are always invited from the Executive 
and all Members and the public are asked through an annual item 
in the ‘council tax’ edition of LINK magazine which is delivered to 
every household.   Members of each scrutiny committee are 
consulted at every meeting as their work programme is a standing 
item on the agenda.

Legal: According to the Council’s constitution, the scrutiny committees 
are responsible for the setting of their own work programme in 
consultation with the Executive and in doing so they shall take into 
account wishes of members on that committee who are not 
members of the largest political group on the Council.

Financial: Any additional meetings and every task and finish group has 
resource needs linked to officer support activity and time for 
officers from the services to make the required input.

Human 
Resource:

There are no additional human resource implications to those 
already contained in the report.

Risk 
Management:

Matters which may benefit from scrutiny may be overlooked.  The 
selection of inappropriate topics for review would risk inefficient 
use of resources.  Where this involved partners, it could risk 
damaging the reputation of the council and relations with partners.

Health and 
wellbeing – 
issues and 
impacts:

The broad remit of scrutiny is to review topics which are of concern 
to the public, many of which have an indirect impact on the general 
wellbeing of residents of East Herts.
The Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee is set up to 
specifically focus in on  issues and topics which have a direct and 
immediate impact on the health and wellbeing of all those who live, 
work or study in the district.

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER “B”

HEALTH AND WELLBEING SCRUTINY PROPOSED COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  2016/17
2016/17 CIVIC YEAR
meeting date topic Contact officer/lead Next Exec
JOINT 17 Jan 2017 BUDGET REPORT(S) Titles TBC 07 Feb 2017

2017/18 – 2020/21 Service PlansJOINT 14 Feb 2017
NEW STYLE Q3 Performance Report (Nov - 
Dec 2016)

04 Apr 2017

Report on Mental Health day (9 Oct)  - verbal 
or written

Chairman of Community 
Scrutiny 

Report and update on the Fuel Poverty 
Strategy (Requested by Exec 2/2/16 Exec)

Environmental Health 
Coordinator

Report on strategic vision for health and 
wellbeing and ensuring residents have active 
and healthy lives.  To include Q&A on leisure 
facilities management strategy 

Executive Member for health 
and wellbeing, Head of Housing 
and Health and Head of 
Operations confirmed

Report on Air Quality Management areas and 
the effects of air pollution on health and 
wellbeing – Agreed 20/9/16 to move to March 
meeting.

TBC

Report and review of draft 2017/18 EH Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy action plan. 

Environmental Health Promotion 
Officer

Update and minutes from HCC Health 
Scrutiny

HWS Chairman

Meeting 
4/4 in 
2016/17

14 Mar 2017
TBC

Deadline 1/3/17

Evaluation of scrutiny and proposed scrutiny 
work programme for 17/18

Scrutiny officer

4 April 2017
TBC

P
age 39



The four principles of good public scrutiny:

 provides ‘critical friend’ challenge to executive policy-makers and decision-makers
 enables the voice and concerns of the public and its communities
 is carried out by ‘independent-minded governors’ who lead and own the scrutiny role
 drives improvement in public services

Health 

and

Wellbeing

Scrutiny

1. To consider matters relating to health in East Herts, in particular to scrutinise (a) local public health issues in the East Herts area, (b) 
partner actions to reduce health inequalities in the East Herts area, and (c) arrangements for the provision of public health initiatives in 
the East Herts area; Community Wellbeing, Ageing Well Initiative, Fuel Poverty, East Herts Community Health and Wellbeing Fund, 
Disabled Facilities Grants, Dementia Friendly Homes and East Herts Strategic Partnership.

2. To make recommendations to the Executive on matters within the remit of the Committee.
3. To take evidence from interested groups and individuals and make recommendations to the Executive and Council for policy change on 

matters within the remit of the Committee.
4. To consider issues referred by the Executive, or members of the Committee and where the views of outsiders may contribute, take 

evidence and report to the Executive and Council on matters within the remit of the Committee.
5. To consider any item referred to the Committee by any Member of the Council who is not a member of this Committee and decide 

whether that item should be pursued on matters within the remit of the Committee.Comittee Scope
6. To appoint annually Standing Panels as may be determined which shall be given a brief to consider a specified service area relating to 

matters within the remit of the Committee and report back to the Committee on a regular basis as determined by the Committee.
7. To consider, should it choose to do so, any item within the remit of the Committee to be considered by the Executive (except items of 

urgent business). The relevant report to the Executive will be made available to the Scrutiny Committee. The Executive shall consider any 
report and recommendations on the item submitted by the Scrutiny Committee. 

8. To consider matters referred to the Committee by the Executive/ Portfolio Holder on matters within the remit of the Committee and 
refer the matter to the Executive following consideration of the matter. 

P
age 40



ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘C’
Abbreviations and Acronyms which may be used in HWB reports

BCF Better Care Fund
CCG Clinical Commissioning Group
CDAT Community Drug and Alcohol Team
CMHT Community Mental Health Trust
CMS Countryside Management Service
CQC Care Quality Commission
CRI Crime Reduction Initiative

DPH Director of Public Health
DH (DoH) Department of Health
DQHH Delivering Quality Healthcare for Hertfordshire

EHO (EHPO) Environmental Health (Promotion) Officer
E&NHT 
(E&NHHT)

East and North Hertfordshire NHS Trust
(East and North Herts Hospitals Trust)

ENCCG East & North Herts Clinical Commissioning Group
EHHWBS East Herts Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013-2018

FCCARS First Contact & Community Referral Scheme
FSA Food Standards Agency

GP General Practitioner

HCC Hertfordshire County Council
HCT Hertfordshire Community Health Trust
HEEP Herts & Essex Energy Partnership
HIA Home Improvement Agency
HPAA Hertfordshire Physical Activity Alliance
HPFT Hertfordshire Partnership Foundation Trust
HSP Herts Sports Partnership
HVCCG Herts Valley Clinical Commissioning Group
HLWB Herts Legacy & Wellbeing Board

JCPB Joint Commissioning Partnership Board
JSNA Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

LAA Local Area Agreement
HWH Healthwatch Hertfordshire
LSP (EHLSP) (East Herts) Local Strategic Partnership
Life course Set of priorities based on the recommendations of the 

Professor Marmot Health Inequalities review. Life course 
describes the journey through life from birth to death and 
how supporting and enabling the best life opportunities for 
individuals can lead to improved health and wellbeing at 
each stage of life.

LG Locality Groups – Groups of GP Practices which form part 
of the wider Clinical Commissioning Groups

Page 41



MIU Minor Injuries Unit

NCMA National Childminders’ Association
NICE National Institute for Health & Care Excellence

OOH Out of Hours

PAH Princess Alexandra Hospitals NHS Trust
PALS Patient Advice and Liaison Services
PCSO Police Community Support Officer
PHSE Personal Health and Social Education
PHE Public Health England

Q1/Q2/Q3/Q4 Quarter 1, 2, 3 & 4
QEII Queen Elizabeth II Hospital
QIPP Quality, Innovation, Productivity & Prevention
QOF Quality and Outcomes Framework

RSPH The Royal Society for Public Health

SCG Specialist Commissioning Group
SCP Southern Country Park
SCS Sustainable Community Strategy
SFBB Safer Food, Better Business
SHA Strategic Health Authority (NHS East of England)
SLM Sports and Leisure Management Ltd 

UCC Urgent Care Centre
UH University of Hertfordshire

WHHT West Hertfordshire Hospitals NHS Trust

 

Page 42


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 East Herts Community Health and Wellbeing Fund - Evaluation Report
	East Herts Community Health and Wellbeing Fund Phase One - Evaluation Report ERP A (Implications)
	East Herts Community Health and Wellbeing Fund Phase One - Evaluation Report ERP B (Table)

	8 Health Scrutiny Work Programme 2016/17
	Work Programme ERP A (Implications)
	Work Programme ERP B (Programme)
	Work Programme ERP C (Abbreviations)


